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LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS USED IN THE 
ANNUAL REPORT 
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BBBEE Act BBBEE Act, Act No. 53 of 2003 
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Section 1 

MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIRPERSON 
BUILDING A DEMOCRATIC SOUTH AFRICA 

It has been 25 years since the birth of democracy in 
our country. So, what does democracy mean? 
Democracy means every citizen is involved in 
government by choosing elected officials to 
represent their interests. A key measure of a 
democracy is how effectively those elected 
representatives are held accountable, both for the 
services government promises to provide and the 
resources made available to deliver on those 
promises. As the authority responsible for deciding 
what financial information should be made available 
when holding government accountable, the ASB has 
played an important role in strengthening 
democracy and building a credible system of public 
financial management.  

THE ROAD AHEAD 

Although the Board has issued a comprehensive set 
of reporting requirements, our work is not done. 
The recent corporate failures such as VBS Bank, 
state capture, bail-outs, ballooning government debt 
and poor audit outcomes mean that there is a 
greater need for: 

 All entities in the public sector to adopt robust, 
accrual-based accounting requirements. 

 Reporting requirements to provide relevant 
information about key government assets, 
liabilities, revenue and expenses.  

 Preparers to improve the quality of the 
information they provide to the users of the 
financial statements.  

Application of accrual accounting by all public sector 
entities 

At present, national and provincial departments do 
not apply accrual accounting. Without adequately 
knowing what an entity – or the government - owns 
and owes, effective decisions cannot be taken, nor 
can a desired level of accountability be achieved.  

The Board will need to continue to discuss this issue 
with the National Treasury to ensure that these 
entities adopt Standards of GRAP.  

Reporting of all government assets and liabilities 

The Board issued revised requirements for financial 
instruments. The most significant change is how and 
when losses on financial assets are reported. To 
date, impairment losses on financial assets have 
only been reported once a ‘loss’ event occurred. 
Going forward, historical, current and forward-
looking information will be considered in 
determining if an asset is impaired and by what 
value. This means that information about potential 
losses on investments, receivables, and loans 
granted by entities will be available earlier. This 
allows decision-makers to react sooner to changes 
in credit risk in order to minimise losses. Changes 
have also been made to ensure that there is greater 
transparency and consistency in the way in which 
financial guarantees issued by the state are reflected 
in the statement of financial position.  

Government has significant obligations for the 
rehabilitation of sites related to waste disposal 
activities. While there have been requirements in 
place for a number of years for entities to record 
these obligations on their statements of financial 
position, there has been diversity in how these 
requirements have been applied. To reduce the 
diversity in practice and provide more consistent 
information to users of financial statements, 
particularly at a local government level, the Board 
issued guidance on accounting for landfill sites.  

Improving the quality of information in financial 
statements 

Although entities in the public sector have been 
applying the Standards of GRAP for a number of 
years, there is still some way to go in improving the 
quality of the information provided in financial 
statements.  
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Entities continue to see the preparation of financial 
statements as a compliance exercise rather than 
making sure that preparers providing concise, 
understandable and relevant information to users of 
the financial statements. To this end, the Board has 
worked on developing guidance on how to apply 
materiality in preparing financial statements. 
Applying materiality means that the most relevant 
information is provided to users, and/or is 
presented in such a way in financial statements that 
portrays its importance. Materiality requires an 
individual to apply judgement. Because of the high 
compliance culture amongst preparers, it may take 
some time for this guidance to yield significant 
changes to the quality of reporting.  

The Board periodically reviews the application of 
the Standards or parts thereof to identify 
application and/or other issues. In reviews 
undertaken during the year on the application of 
certain Standards, it became evident that the 
requirements of the Standards are often 
misunderstood or misapplied by preparers, or there 
is a lack of basic financial discipline in place at 
entities to support the application of the Standards. 
While the education of preparers is outside the 
Board’s mandate, initiatives will be put in place to 
better communicate and explain aspects of the 
Standards. The President’s call to develop a 
capacitated state is critical to developing a mature 
public financial management system to support 
planning, execution and reporting.   

ENSURING THE STANDARDS ARE WORLD-CLASS 

Much of the Board’s work programme for 
2018/2019, and looking ahead to 2019/2020, will 
focus on addressing local issues. There are a number 
of issues currently being discussed by the IPSASB 
which are of relevance locally, e.g. leases, revenue, 
social benefits, and measurement of assets and 
liabilities. The Board completed its consultation on 
its work programme for 2021-2023 and received 
views from respondents on the IPSASB projects it 
should undertake. The Secretariat also actively 
supports the South African member on the IPSASB 
by providing technical support at the IPSASB 
meetings, as well as in-between scheduled meetings.  

COMMUNICATION IS KEY 

The credibility of the Board’s work rests with its 
ability to engage key stakeholders on critical issues 
at the right time. This engagement is important for 
developing new Standards but is also critical in 
understanding what issues exist in practice, how 
they should be addressed, and whether the 
Standards are achieving their intended objectives. 
The Board is actively reviewing what it 
communicates and how it communicates with 
stakeholders. A significant part of the current 
engagement is facilitated through partners such as 
SAICA, CIGFARO, SALGA and others, and their 
continued support is much appreciated.  

OPERATIONS OF THE ASB 

Operationally, the ASB subscribes to the principles 
of King IV, and as a result, is a mature, well-run 
organisation. However, reductions in budget 
allocations from next year onwards may impact the 
Board’s ability to fulfil its mandate, particularly the 
translation of Standards. Translations will need to 
be done when funding is available.  

In reflecting on the Board’s achievements for the 
year, it is with a great feeling of gratitude that I thank 
our stakeholders and partners, the Standing 
Committee on Finance, the National Treasury and 
the AGSA for their assistance, collaboration, and 
contribution to the achievement of our objectives.   

Lastly, thank you to my fellow Board members, the 
members of the Audit Committee, and the 
employees of the ASB for all your dedication and 
hard work towards building a more democratic 
South Africa.  

 

 

 

 

Vincent Ngobese  

Chairperson  

4 July 2019 

VNgobese
Stamp



Section 1 ASB ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 
 

 
 6 

  

REVIEW OF THE OPERATIONS BY THE CHIEF 
EXECUTIVE 

REBUILDING PUBLIC CONFIDENCE IN PUBLIC SECTOR 
FINANCIAL REPORTING 

South Africans are shocked after recent reports of 
largescale fraud and corruption both in the public, 
and private sector. Consequently, the credibility of 
financial reporting by any public sector entity, 
whether a state-owned enterprise, a municipality or 
a government department, is being questioned and 
viewed with suspicion.  

The public interest makes it incumbent on public 
sector entities to take the initiative to review 
reporting to their stakeholders and implement 
changes to increase transparency and 
accountability. They should not wait for changes to 
legislation to implement these changes. 

It is essential that the information presented be 
accrual-based as users need a complete picture at a 
given point in time. In the words of David Walker, a 
previous Comptroller-General of the United States, 
“failure to adopt accrual-based accounting can 
result in a very misleading view regarding the 
current results of operations and the fiscal 
sustainability of current policies”. Without accrual-
based accounting, the financial statements paint 
only part of the picture.  

As citizens we must demand a full set of financial 
statements for every entity that makes up “South 
Africa Inc”. These financial statements should reflect 
the results, performance and cash flows on an 
accrual basis and all revenue, expenditure, assets 
and liabilities. The liabilities should include not only 
debt, but also provisions for shortfalls on pension 
funds guaranteed by government as the employer. 
Liabilities for all the social benefit grants should also 
be included based on the principle that government 
has made a promise to the qualifying recipients to 
pay grants for a specific length of time. Social benefit 
related liabilities should not only be recognised 
based on the amounts due next month.  

 

 

Disclosure of guarantees issued should be made 
with an indication of the extent to which the 
guarantee has been used by the holder and the 
likelihood that government will have to make good 
in terms of its guarantee. Users need to know 
whether the values of assets under the control of 
government exceed the liabilities.  

With this information, informed decisions can be 
made about tax increases or tax reductions. An 
assessment of the affordability of promises made 
regarding national health insurance, minimum 
wages and free or affordable education are also 
possible.  Fiscal sustainability can then be accurately 
and reliably assessed. Without this information, any 
views that are expressed are guesswork at best.  

The South African public needs full accrual-based 
financial statements, and a consolidation of whole-
of-government financial statements, audited in 
accordance with International Auditing Standards. 
Without this the level of information, government 
debt cannot be determined accurately, and the 
impact of ratings changes cannot be assessed.  

Resource providers to government, e.g. the 
taxpayers and ratepayers, deserve credible financial 
information so that they can make informed 
decisions and hold officials and politicians 
accountable. 

It is time to rebuild faith in government finances. 
Adopting accrual accounting at all spheres of 
government is the starting point. 

HOW HAS THE ASB RESPONDED? 

We have reviewed our own risk management 
policies, financial controls and financial reporting. 
We have reviewed our expenditure to ensure every 
Rand provided to the ASB is spent to deliver in 
accordance with our mandate. We have revisited 
every line item to determine whether we can incur 
savings by changing service providers or doing 
things smarter. A key cost saver has been the 
production of the annual report in-house.  
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OVERVIEW OF PERFORMANCE 

The results of the operations for the year are set out 
on page 43 and a comparison with the budget is set 
out on page 46. The financial year was a difficult one 
in which the transfer payment was reduced, and we 
had to accommodate 5 Board meetings in one year. 
Due to time constraints between the date of 
appointment of new Board members and the new 
financial year, the final Board meeting of the 
2017/2018 year took place in May 2018 rather than 
March 2018 as would normally be the case. With 
consent from the National Treasury, we were able to 
retain R26 600 from the previous financial year, 
which provided some relief for the delayed meeting. 

A complete review of the ASB’s performance for the 
year is outlined on pages 9 to 13. The targets for the 
year were exceeded by the issue of 2 additional 
documents.   

ASB had no resignations during the year. This 
ensured that we could deal with difficult topics on 
the work programme that respond to stakeholder 
needs. Having experienced staff ensures the time 
taken to develop documents for consultation is 
reduced, increasing the time available for face-to-
face consultation and ensuring we respond 
adequately to issues raised.  

LOOKING FORWARD 

The funding constraint caused by the reduction in 
the baseline going forward is impairing the ASB’s 
ability to deliver in accordance with its mandate. It 
will have the following impact:  

 Translations of Standards of GRAP will be 
performed only when funding permits it. 

 Post-implementation reviews of Standards of 
GRAP will only be possible when a project on a 
specific Standard is delayed or deferred. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 The number of technical projects being 
undertaken over the next 3 year work 
programme will be reduced to make time 
available for the greater involvement in 
international projects. 

 Participation in face-to face meetings will be 
reduced based on the available funding. 

APPRECIATION 

The investment by stakeholders of time to permit 
their employees to participate in our workshops and 
roundtables and prepare and attend project group 
meetings mean we develop Standards that respond 
to user’s needs and are implementable. The 
investment is not measurable, but it is certainly 
appreciated. 

I would like to thank the chair and the members of 
the Board for their leadership and support. The 
change in Board members every 3 years ensures 
that we do not rest on our laurels, but that we 
question our performance and the most effective 
and efficient way of continuing. 

Finally, without the support of my team, the ASB 
would not be able to deliver on its mandate and 
achieve the performance that it has to date. Thank 
you! Your hard work and dedication have not gone 
unnoticed. 

 

 

 

 

E Swart 

Chief Executive 

4 July 2019 
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VALUE ADDED STATEMENT 
HOW WE ADD VALUE TO 

THE PEOPLE OF SOUTH AFRICA 

We listen to the conversations in the public 
sector and act in the public interest by setting 
financial reporting standards that are relevant 
for all three spheres and that improve 
accountability and decision-making. 

PARLIAMENT AND THE LEGISLATURES 

The information presented in the annual 
financial statements enables Parliament and the 
legislatures, as the elected representatives of 
the people of South Africa, to hold officials to 
account for the resources bestowed on the 
public sector. 

THE AUDITOR-GENERAL  

SOUTH AFRICA  

The Standards we set enables the AGSA to 
express a fair presentation opinion on the 
annual financial statements prepared by entities 
using Standards of GRAP. 

THE EXECUTIVE 

We respond to information needs by developing 
Standards that, when implemented, result in 
credible financial information for decision-
making. 

We comment on initiatives being developed by 
the National Treasury to improve financial 
reporting. 

We promote initiatives that result in the 
effective management of revenue, expenditure, 
assets and liabilities. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THE ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY 

We deliver in accordance with our mandate. 

We demonstrate accountability and 
transparency for the resources entrusted to us.  

OUR EMPLOYEES 

We create meaningful employment. 

We provide fair, transparent and equitable 
remuneration. 

 

VALUE-ADDED STATEMENT 

 % R ‘000 

Revenue  14 611 

Paid to suppliers 19.88 2 905 

Total value added 80.12 11 706 

   

Applied as follows:   

Paid on employees 99.8 11 682 

- Remuneration 98.4 11 523 

- Training 1.40 159 

Reinvested in the 
operations 

0.21 24 

- Depreciation 0.43 50 

- Retained (deficit) (0.22) (26)

Total value added   11 706 
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Section 2 

REVIEW OF THE ASB’S PERFORMANCE FOR 
2018/2019 

Our vision, mission 
and values 

VISION 
To develop accounting standards that promote 
accountability, transparency, and effective 
financial management within all spheres of 
government.  

MISSION 
We achieve this through focused and targeted 
stakeholder interaction that results in the 
provision of relevant, credible and 
implementable accounting Standards. 

VALUES 
 We maintain a high standard of professional 

ethics. 

 We set accounting and reporting Standards 
in the public interest, which means that we 
act with integrity and objectivity in our 
deliberations, decisions and actions and are 
seen to be independent. 

 We consult widely and encourage public 
participation in our Standard-setting 
process.   

 We promote a culture of learning to realise 
the full potential of our people.  

These values are entrenched in the ASB’s 5 
strategic objectives and evidenced through the 
achievement of its performance targets. 

The ASB’s standard-setting activities are 
identified based on a 3-year work programme. 
The work programme is developed after 
consulting key stakeholders, preparers, users, 
auditors, and other interested parties. The 
current work programme spans the period 
1 April 2017 to 31 March 2020.  The activities on 
the work programme are used to develop the 
performance targets both for the medium term 
and annually.  

The ASB submits its approved strategy and 
annual performance plan to the Minister of 
Finance, who is the Executive Authority of the 
ASB, for his approval and for tabling in 
Parliament.  

HOW WELL DID THE ASB PERFORM IN 
2018/2019? 

The Board achieved all the targets it set for the 
year, and issued an additional 2 pronounce-
ments to accommodate regulatory changes in 
the Higher Education sector.  

The assessment of the Board’s performance in 
achieving its strategic objectives and, 
specifically, its annual targets for 2018/2019 is 
outlined in the diagram below.  
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RESULTS   OF   ACTIVITIES   AND ACHIEVEMENTS 

Diagram 1 – Snapshot of the ASB’s performance for 2018/2019 
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Set Standards of GRAP 

Develop Standards of GRAP based on an approved 
work programme on an on-going basis, which:  

 provide accounting requirements for all 
material transactions and events,  

 are understandable, and  

 can be implemented by entities in all three 
spheres of government. 

The Board consulted on its work programme 
with stakeholders who identified a number of 
projects that would resolve issues regarding the 
consistency of information available for key 
public sector assets and liabilities, improve the 
relevance and quality of information in the 
financial statements, and align the Standards of 
GRAP with the latest thinking internationally. 
These key projects relate to:  

 Guidance on how to account for landfill sites 
(both the asset and the obligations), and the 
treatment of adjustments to revenue already 
recognised by an entity.  

 Guidance on applying materiality to ensure 
that the key users of financial statements and 
their information needs are identified.  

 Amending GRAP 104 on Financial Instruments 
to align it with the equivalent IFRS Standard.  

Certain entities in the public sector apply IFRS 
Standards for the following reasons: they issue 
publicly traded equity, they are financial 
institutions, or because they receive only an 
insignificant amount of funding from government 
and operate on a commercial basis. Requests 
were made to the ASB by stakeholders for 
guidance on whether Standards of GRAP should 
be considered if there is no specific IFRS Standard 
dealing with an issue. An Exposure Draft was 
issued for comment, and the final Interpretation 
will be considered for approval in 2019/2020.  

The Minister of Higher Education and Training 
(HET) determines which accounting standards 
should be applied by universities and colleges. 
During the year, the Minister of HET prescribed 
Standards of GRAP for Community Education and 
Training (CET) Colleges effective from 1 April 2015. 

Although the ASB does not have direct 
responsibility for the Colleges, the Board needs to 
facilitate the adoption of Standards of GRAP by 
them. Both an Exposure Draft and a final Directive 
were issued outlining the requirements for the 
initial adoption of the Standards of GRAP by CET 
Colleges. These 2 documents are in addition to the 
agreed number of 7 documents outlined in the 
APP.  

The Board initiated research on 2 topics during 
the year:  

 Reporting of information to citizens.  

 Standards of GRAP for ‘small’ entities.  

The first project examined whether citizens (e.g. 
taxpayers, ratepayers, recipients of government 
services) require specific information from the 
financial statements to hold entities accountable, 
and what type of report is required. The research 
indicated that citizens require some of the 
information in the financial statements but have a 
high need for detailed information about specific 
projects, capital expenditure, and the services 
provided to them (i.e. non-financial information). 
Much of this information is already available on 
government portals.  The research identified that 
citizens would like this information in a concise, 
easily understandable dashboard-type report. As 
the information required by citizens extends 
beyond just financial statements, the Board 
agreed to publish the findings of its research, but 
to not progress the project at this stage. The 
results of the research will help other 
organisations such as the National Treasury and 
the Department of Performance Monitoring and 
Evaluation in developing their reports and 
deciding what information to make available. 
Entities do however have discretion about how 
they report information, and the findings in the 
Research Paper may assist entities in thinking 
about what information to make available and 
how to present it.  

The Board often receives feedback that Standards 
of GRAP are overly complex, particularly for 
relatively small organisations and/or those with 
simple transactions. It is also observed that these 
entities have severe capacity constraints, and often 
cannot attract and retain skilled accountants. 
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While the Board has undertaken work in 
previous years to determine whether an 
equivalent of IFRS for SMEs® Standard should 
be introduced, this project aimed to identify if 
there are other interventions that can be 
undertaken to address the issues raised. After 
receiving detailed feedback about the 
challenges experienced and debating several 
options, the Board agreed that some of its 
planned interventions may address the 
challenges. The Board will reassess at a later 
date whether any remaining challenges need to 
be addressed. A Research Paper will be 
published in 2019/2020 outlining the results of 
the research. 

Monitor the application of the Standards of 
GRAP 

Monitor and evaluate the consistent application of 
the Standards of GRAP on an on-going basis by 
considering whether or not the needs of users are 
met. 

Respond to issues identified by stakeholders by 
developing FAQs or adding projects to the work 
programme.  

The key activity undertaken for the year was 
assessing the effectiveness of amendments 
made to the Standards of GRAP on Investment 
Property and Property, Plant and Equipment. 
Amendments were made to these Standards as 
a result of the Board’s post-implementation 
review in 2014. This year’s review assessed 
whether the amendments to the two Standards 
are achieving their purpose. For the most part, it 
was found that the amendments are achieving 
their purpose, but that guidance is needed on 
how to apply some of the changes. A Research 
Paper outlining the complete findings will be 
published later in 2019.   

FAQs are issued if the Secretariat (or the 
National Treasury or AGSA) receive a number of 
queries related to the same topic. FAQs do not 
provide accounting guidance for specific 
transactions, but instead provide principle-
based guidance on high-level issues experienced 
in practice. The FAQs are issued by the 
Secretariat and not the Board and are therefore 
not subject to a public consultation process. 

New FAQs were issued, and existing FAQs 
revised, based on matters identified by 
stakeholders. FAQs are issued within 6 months 
of identifying the issue.   

One of the key ways in which the Secretariat and 
Board receives feedback on the application of 
the Standards is through the PSAF meetings 
which are held 8 times a year. These meetings 
provide an opportunity for preparers, auditors, 
consultants and others to discuss accounting 
matters that are of importance for the sector. 
The PSAF meetings are hosted by stakeholders 
such as SAICA, CIGAFRO and other auditing and 
consulting firms. Their support in hosting the 
PSAF meetings is much appreciated. A full list of 
the events hosted during the year is available on 
the website.  

All scheduled meetings were held for the year.  

Promote the adoption of the Standards of GRAP 

Monitor and facilitate the adoption of the 
Standards of GRAP by public sector entities 
through the development of transitional provisions 
and transitional arrangements when the Minister 
of Finance approves a new Standard. 

Respond to issues identified by stakeholders by 
developing FAQs or adding projects to the work 
programme.  

There were no new Standards of GRAP approved 
for implementation by the Minister of Finance.  

The Board issued transitional provisions for the 
CET colleges (see the discussion on “Set 
Standards of GRAP”).  

5 articles were published during the year under 
review on Exposure Drafts and final 
pronouncements issued by the Board.  

Consistent with previous years, the Secretariat 
issued a Newsletter and a summary of the 
Board’s key deliberations after each Board 
meeting. A strategy was initiated to increase 
communication with stakeholders during the 
year. The Secretariat is actively trying to 
establish the ASB’s presence on social media as 
a means to improve awareness about the ASB, 
the documents it issues, and increasing 
participation in the consultation process.  
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The website is also being redesigned to make it 
more user friendly.  

Influence the development of international 
standards 

Influence the development on an on-going basis of:  

 private sector standards to minimise 
differences between the private and public 
sectors, and 

 IPSASs, as appropriate public sector standards, 
reduce the need for South African public sector 
amendments in the development of Standards 
of GRAP.  

The Board has a policy of converging its 
Standards with IPSAS where this contributes to 
the achievement of the Board’s mandate and 
strategic objectives. As a result, the Board 
continues its effort to influence international 
standard-setting. This is done through 
participation in the activities of the IPSASB, its 
task forces, as well as through commenting on 
relevant pronouncements.  

Lindy Bodewig, a member of the ASB, was 
appointed to the IPSASB on January 2017. She is 
supported by Tsholo Tshoke, a standard setter 
at the ASB, as a technical advisor. These 
appointments ensure that the ASB’s ability to 
influence the decisions made by the IPSASB. In 
addition, the ASB has, or will over the next year, 
participate in the following Task Forces:  

 Natural Resources – Lindy Bodewig.  

 Leases – Tsholo Tshoke.  

 Heritage – Amanda Botha.  

 Public Sector Specific Financial Instruments 
– Jeanine Poggiolini.  

The international involvement is resource 
intensive, but essential to achieve the 
requirement in the PFMA to set Standards that 
are best practice internationally. The extent of 
the ASB’s involvement demonstrates the esteem 
with which the international standard-setting 
community holds South African technical skills.  

 

The IPSASB had a number of projects of 
significant importance to public sector financial 
reporting on its work programme during 
2018/2019. These projects include on social 
benefits, revenue, non-exchange expenses, 
leases and measurement of assets and liabilities. 
The Secretariat has spent more time providing 
the IPSASB member from South Africa, as well 
as the staff at the IPSASB, with detailed 
comments on project proposals in between, or 
prior to, the IPSASB meetings.  

The Secretariat formally commented on the 
proposed IPSAS on leases, the IPSASB’s 
proposed strategy and work plan for 2019-
2023, Improvements to IPSAS 2018, as well as 
amendments to financial instruments and 
assessing investments in associates and joint 
ventures for impairment.   

An event to discuss the work of the IPSASB was 
hosted on 29 March 2019 with key government 
officials, auditors and others. Thank you to EY 
for generously hosting the event at their offices 
in Sandton.  

Manage the resources to ensure the ASB is 
operationally effective 

To ensure the development of the Standards of 
GRAP is done in the most efficient, effective and 
economic way.
  

The ASB received an unqualified opinion for the 
year under review.  
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OUTLOOK FOR 2019/2020 AND BEYOND 
STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES, INDICATORS, AND TARGETS OF THE ASB FOR 2019/2020 

Strategic objectives Measurable indicator and related target  

Set Standards of GRAP Present 8 documents as identified in the work programme. 

Present the completed research for projects as identified in the work 
programme. 

Influence the development of 
international standards 

Issue a FAQ within 6 months of the identification of the need to develop a FAQ. 

Host at least 8 PSAF meetings per year. 

Publish the consultation document to facilitate the post-implementation review 
of GRAP 103 on Heritage Assets. 

Publish the analysis and results of the review of the implementation of the 
amendments to the Standards of GRAP on Investment Property and Property, 
Plant and Equipment/  

Promote the adoption of the 
Standards of GRAP 

Submit 4 different articles on different topics for publication to professional 
bodies per year. 

Issue a newsletter and meeting highlights within one month after a Board 
meeting. 

Monitor the application of the 
Standards of GRAP 

Comment within the comment period set by IPSASB on those IPSASB EDs 
relevant to the ASB. 

Attend all four IPSASB meetings. 

Manage resources to ensure 
the ASB is operationally 
effective 

Receive no qualifications reported by external auditor in the report published 
in the annual report. 

BEYOND 2020 

The Board consulted on its work programme for the next 3 years. The Board will consider the 
proposals in July, in time for the new strategic planning period, the development of the annual 
performance plan and the work programme.
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Section 3 

STAKEHOLDER OUTREACH 
THE NEED TO CONSULT 

A key part of standard-setting is consultation 
with those whose work will be impacted by the 
Standards. This consultation ensures that the 
Standards of GRAP are credible and relevant to 
the South African public sector. It also provides 
preparers and others an opportunity to identify 
issues related to the practical application and 
implementation of the Standards.  

THE ASB’S STAKEHOLDERS 

The ASB’s stakeholders include preparers of the 
financial statements, auditors, consultants, 
professional bodies, users of the financial 
statements (as well as representatives of any of 
these stakeholders), and other interested 
parties. 

WHEN DOES CONSULTATION HAPPEN 

The Board consults with stakeholders 
throughout the standard-setting process, i.e. 
when:  

 Standards are being developed or 
research is being undertaken.  

 Standards have been issued for public 
consultation.  

 Standards have been approved by the 
Board.  

 Standards (or aspects of Standards) are 
reviewed as part of a post-
implementation or other review.  

The Board undertook a total of 91 local (2018: 
42) consultations during the year and 
participated in 3 international engagements 
(2018:0). Table 1 provides information about 
the type of engagements undertaken during the 
year. 

 

 

 

 

Table 1 – Types of engagements undertaken during the year 

Nature of 
engagement 

No. of engagements % 
change 

2018/2019 2017/2018  

Due process 
engagements 

80 30 +163 

Sharing 
information 
with 
stakeholders 

11 12 -8 

International 3 0 +300 

Total 94 42 +223 

The number of consultations undertaken during 
the year has more than doubled compared to the 
prior year for a number of reasons:  

 11 Exposure Drafts were issued for 
comment. Much of the Board’s time in 
2017/2018 was spent developing the 
documents for consultation during the year 
under review.  

 2 Research projects were undertaken 
during the year on the need for the 
reporting of information to citizens and 
whether specific interventions (e.g. specific 
guidance or a different reporting 
framework) are needed for small entities. 
To ensure that the research outcomes are 
comprehensive and enable the Board to 
make decisions about possible actions, the 
consultation needed to include as many 
affected stakeholders as possible.  

 A review was undertaken of the 
effectiveness of the amendments to the 
Standards of GRAP on Investment Property 
and Property, Plant and Equipment. As these 
amendments affect entities across the 
public sector, there was a need for 
engagement with both public entities and 
municipalities.  
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 Consultation with the standard-setter for 
the private sector was needed during the 
development of the Exposure Draft on The 
Application of Standards of GRAP by Public 
Entities that Apply IFRS® Standards.  

The Board aims to undertake outreach in each 
of the 9 provinces. This currently is dependent 
on invitations from the relevant organisations in 
the respective provinces. The Board reached 8 
out of 9 provinces this year, in part because of 
events facilitated jointly by CIGFARO and 
SALGA. Information about the geographic 
distribution of the consultations undertaken 
during the year is outlined in Table 2 below. 

Table 2 – Geographical distribution of outreach 

Province No. of consultations 

2018/2019 2017/2018 

Eastern Cape 1 1 

Free State 0 0 

Gauteng 2 0 

KwaZulu Natal 3 1 

Limpopo 1 0 

Mpumalanga 1 0 

Northern Cape 2 0 

North West 1 1 

Western Cape 2 2 

National 81 37 

International 3 0 

Total 94 42 

A list of the ASB’s stakeholder outreach for the 
year is available on the website.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Diversifying outreach and communication efforts 

Much of the Board’s stakeholder outreach 
involves face-to-face interactions through 
workshops, conferences, and meetings. Face-to-
face interactions are the most effective means of 
consultation as they provide the Board an 
opportunity to directly engage affected 
stakeholders. These types of consultations are 
sometimes geared at educating stakeholders on 
the proposed Standards at the same time as 
receiving feedback on proposals. These 
interactions are also an opportunity for 
stakeholders to discuss any issues related to the 
Standards of GRAP directly with the standard-
setter. Face-to-face meetings are however 
resource intensive, both in terms of the 
Secretariat’s and stakeholders’ time, as well as 
travel costs.  

The Board has partnered with SAICA over the 
last year by webcasting two GRAP Updates, as 
well as recording YouTube videos for Standards 
of GRAP that will become effective from 1 April 
2019.   

Making pronouncements more accessible 

To facilitate better accessibility to and 
understanding of the Standards of GRAP issued 
by the Board, the Standards have been 
translated into isiZulu, Sesotho and Afrikaans. 
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Section 4 

IMPACT OF THE ASB’S OPERATIONS ON 
THE ENVIRONMENT 

The sustainability of an organisation is 
measured by its impact on the workplace, the 
economy, society and the environment. This 
section outlines the ASB’s impact on the 
environment while other aspects are dealt with 
elsewhere in the report.  

OVERVIEW 

The ASB’s activities comprise two key aspects – 
research and development of pronouncements 
and related activities, and consultation with 
stakeholders on the development, adoption and 
implementation of the ASB’s pronouncements. 
During the research and development of 
pronouncements, the ASB’s activities are mostly 
office-based. Various modes of travel are 
required to consult with stakeholders during 
the development, adoption and implementation 
of pronouncements. The key resources that the 
ASB uses in undertaking its activities that have 
an environmental impact are:  

 Paper 

 Water 

 Energy  

 CO2 emissions through air travel 

CONSUMPTION FOR THE YEAR 

Table 3 below outlines the ASB’s use of these 
resources during the 2018/2019 reporting 
period.  

Water 

The water consumption for the period has 
remained relatively unchanged compared to the 
prior year.  

 

 

 

Table 3 – Resources consumed during the year  

Resource 2018/2019 2017/2018 Change 

Water 94.5 kL 91.5 kL 3% 

Electricity 15 503 kW 12 403 kW 25% 

Paper 234 kg 311 kg -25% 

International 
travel 

162 320 km 125 026 km 30% 

Domestic 
travel 

45 360 km 24 274 km 87% 

Energy 

The electricity has increased by 25% from 
2017/2018. An additional air conditioner was 
installed by the building owner as the previous 
system was ineffective for heating and cooling 
all parts of the office.  

Paper 

The ASB’s paper usage has decreased during the 
year by 25%. Paper usage is often dependent on 
the nature of the documents being developed 
(or reviewed in the case of reviews of the 
IPSASB’s documents) and their stage of 
development. It is often necessary to print 
lengthy documents to enable effective internal 
and other reviews.  

Waste paper is recycled wherever possible.   

Carbon emissions 

The ASB measures its impact on the 
environment by calculating the distance 
travelled by air as this mode of travel results in 
the most significant output of carbon emissions. 
The Board does not measure kilometres 
travelled by car to attend meetings, workshops 
and other engagements, nor does it measure the 
resources consumed by our stakeholders to 
attend our meetings and project groups. 
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The Secretariat undertakes air travel 
domestically to engage with stakeholders. 
International air travel is used to attend IPSASB 
meetings as the technical adviser to the IPSASB 
member. Although face-to-face engagements 
are often more effective than other mechanisms, 
the travel implications of the Board’s outreach 
are always front of mind. In an effort to reduce 
travel time and costs, technology such as 
webcasts, Skype and recordings of videos on 
YouTube are used to communicate various 
issues with stakeholders.  

There has been an increase in both domestic and 
international travel. The reasons are outlined 
below:  

 Domestic travel increased by 87%. This is 
due to the increase in outreach as well as an 
additional out of town Board member 
appointed during the year.  

 International travel increased by 30%. An 
additional staff member attended an 
IPSASB meeting as a development and 
learning opportunity.  

While the ASB ensures that the air travel 
undertaken is only that which is most necessary, 
the negative effects that air travel has on the 
environment have not been offset in any way.  
Contributing to carbon offset programmes 
offered by airlines is often prohibitive in terms 
of cost, and the ASB has insufficient resources to 
spend on such programmes. 
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Section 5 

GOVERNANCE OF THE ASB 
An effective governance structure, supported by 
processes, policies, systems and a strategic plan 
and APP, have been implemented and 
maintained to ensure the Board and its 
employees are held accountable.  

APPLICATION OF KING IV 

The Board has benchmarked its governance 
policies and practices to the recommended 
principles set out in King IV. The Board is an 
early adopter of the principles of King IV and has 
identified the following gaps.  

 Neither the Chief Executive nor the 
Technical Director are members of the 
Board but attend all Board meetings and 
meetings of committees of the Board to 
ensure members are provided with all 
information they may require. A change in 
the composition and the structure of the 
Board would require an amendment to 
legislation so this will not be pursued at 
present.  

 The employment contracts of key 
employees do not address any contractual 
termination conditions, other than a 
standard calendar month notice period.  
This will be revisited by the Board at a 
future date in conjunction with the Minister 
of Finance to ensure that any amendments 
are funded. 

 None of the members of the audit 
committee are members of the Board.  
Audit Committee members are appointed 
by the National Treasury. The chair of the 
audit committee is invited to attend all the 
Board meetings and has all the rights and 
obligations as if the chair is a Board 
member, except with regards to the right to 
vote at Board meetings.   

 

The Board, in accordance with King IV, is 
applying the principles and explaining its 
practices. A detailed report on the Board’s 
progress on complying with King IV is available 
on the ASB website.   

STANDING COMMITTEE ON FINANCE (SCoF) 

Parliament exercises its role of evaluating the 
performance of the ASB by considering its 
annual financial statements, which, together 
with other documents, must be tabled from time 
to time. The SCoF is required to review the ASB’s 
annual financial statements and the reports of 
the external auditor. The SCoF provides 
oversight over the ASB, as an entity in the 
portfolio of the Minister of Finance. 

EXECUTIVE AUTHORITY 

The Minister of Finance is the Executive 
Authority responsible for the ASB. The Minister 
of Finance is responsible for appointing Board 
members and for ensuring those members have 
the necessary skills and expertise in accounting 
and public sector finance. Board members 
should also have the knowledge and 
understanding of financial reporting and 
governance to guide the ASB as a public entity. 
In addition to appointing the Board members, 
the Minister of Finance determines the 
implementation dates for Standards of GRAP 
developed by the Board. 
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Diagram 2: The governance structure at a glance 

 SCoF 
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 Ensures independence 
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the Accountant-General and the Auditor-General  
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 Manages the 
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remuneration 
committee 
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COMMITTEE 

 

 Provides oversight over effective, 
efficient, and transparent 
systems of financial management, 
risk management and internal 
control 

 Provides oversight over shared 
internal audit unit 

 Comprises 5 independent non-
executive members appointed by 
the National Treasury  

 Shared Audit Committee with the 
National Treasury 

 Shared internal audit unit 
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Board 
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 5 Board 
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 Members 
representing the 
AGSA and OAG 
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Executive of the 
ASB 

AUDIT 
COMMITTEE 
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 Appoints Board members 

 Determines implementation dates for 
Standards of GRAP 

 Approves strategy, annual performance 
plan and budget 

 

MINISTER OF FINANCE 
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THE BOARD 

The Board consists of a maximum of 10 board 
members. Board members have a dual function.  

Firstly, they are responsible for governance and 
accountability, and as Accounting Authority, for 
ensuring the ASB meets the objectives set out in 
the strategic plan. This activity is executed 
through the Operations Committee and the 
Chief Executive.  

Secondly, the Board is responsible for setting 
Standards of GRAP. This activity is executed 
through the Technical Committee and the 
Technical Director. The Chief Executive is a 
member of the Technical Committee. 

The Board has delegated a number of functions 
to the Technical Committee. To ensure the 
Board maintains its integrity and fulfils its 
governance and accountability responsibilities, 
it has further delegated some of its functions to 
the Operations Committee, to assist with the 
effective performance of its functions. 

In its capacity as standard-setter, the Board 
develops and approves Standards of GRAP, 
Interpretations of Standards of GRAP, 
Directives, Discussion Papers, Exposure Drafts, 
and Guidelines for those entities required to 
comply with the Standards of GRAP. Once a 
Standard of GRAP has been approved by the 
Board, an implementation date is recommended 
to the Minister of Finance. The recommendation 
is made after consultation with the AGSA and 
the OAG.  

The Board is also required to promote 
transparency in, and effective financial 
management of, revenue, expenditure, assets 
and liabilities in the public sector.  

The Board has retained the responsibility for 
ethics, as it believes the tone is set at the top and 
as a result has not established a separate ethics 
committee or delegated the responsibility to an 
existing sub-committee of the Board. 

Audit committee  

Due to the size and nature of the ASB, it shares 
the National Treasury’s Audit Committee. 

The National Treasury appoints and 
remunerates the members of the Audit 
Committee. 

The National Treasury is responsible for the 
governance and accountability of the Audit 
Committee. An unimpeded direct link to the 
ASB’s Board and committees is ensured by the 
Chairperson of the Audit Committee attending 
the Board meetings, and the Chief Audit 
Executive attending the meetings of the 
Operations Committee. 

Information on attendance of the Audit 
Committee members at meetings and 
remuneration is included in the annual report of 
the National Treasury. The ASB remunerates the 
Chairperson of the Audit Committee for 
attendance of Board meetings.  

Information on the members of the Audit 
Committee is set out in the Committee’s report 
on page 32. 

Composition and remuneration of Board members 

Remuneration of Board members is determined 
by the Minister of Finance. Employees of 
national, provincial and local government and 
any of their agencies, entities, or organs of state 
are not remunerated. Those members are 
identified by an asterisk (*) in the tables below. 

Actual expenses incurred by Board members to 
attend meetings are refunded. The tables reflect 
actual meeting attendance and remuneration 
for the year.  

Remuneration strategy for Board 

Board members are remunerated at the rate of 
a specialist in accordance with the SAICA 
Guideline on Fees for Audits Done on Behalf of the 
AGSA. Board members are remunerated at an 
hourly rate for the length of the meeting.  

The Chairperson receives a monthly fee for his 
responsibilities over and above his duties as 
chair of meetings. The fee has been determined 
by the Minister of Finance and increases 
annually at the rate determined by the National 
Treasury in accordance with Treasury 
Regulation 3.1.1.  
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Evaluation of performance of the Board 

The annual evaluation of Board members’ own 
performance recognises the relevant roles and 
responsibilities and cohesion of the Board. In 
the first year of a term the assessment is 
performed by the Chairperson of the Board and 
the chairpersons of the subcommittees of the 
Board. In the second year of a term a self-
assessment is performed by the members of the 

Board and the subcommittees of the Board. In 
the final year Board members assess each 
other’s performance and those of the 
Chairperson. 

Based on the assessment in the current year, the 
Board is satisfied no significant issues were 
identified. The new Board (appointed on 1 
March 2018) is operating efficiently and 
effectively. 

 

Table 4 - Composition and attendance of Operations Committee meetings 

Name of Board member Date appointed No. of meetings 
attended 

V Ngobese 31 August 2018 4 of 4 

P Moalusi* 1 March 2018 4 of 4 

N Themba* 1 March 2018 3 of 4 

K Hoosain 1 March 2018 4 of 4 

 

Table 5 - Composition and attendance of Technical Committee meetings 

Name of member Date appointed No. of meetings 
attended 

L Bodewig 21 July 2015 4 of 4 

V Ngobese 21 July 2015 2 of 4 

I Lubbe 21 July 2015 4 of 4 

F Abba 1 March 2018 4 of 4 

C Braxton 1 March 2018 4 of 4 

M Mentz* 10 February 2017 4 of 4 

E Swart* 21 July 2015 4 of 4 

[*] Indicates that the member is not remunerated.  
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Table 6 - Composition and attendance of Board meetings 

Name of Board 
member 

Designation in terms of  Board 
structure 

Date appointed Qualifications Area of expertise No. of Board 
meetings 
attended 

V Ngobese Chairperson of the Board 

Independent non-executive member 

Chairperson of the Operations Committee 

Member of the Technical Committee 

1 March 2015 

Re-appointed for a second term 
on 1 March 2018 

CA(SA) Public sector finance and 
consulting 

 

5 of 5** 

F Abba Independent non-executive member 

Member of the Technical Committee 

1 March 2018 CA(SA) Technical accounting and 
auditing (public and 
private sector) 

 

4 of 5** 

L Bodewig* Non-executive member 

Chairperson of the Technical Committee 

1 March 2018 

 

CA(SA) Public sector finance  

4 of 5 

C Braxton Independent non-executive member 

Member of the Technical Committee 

1 March 2018 CA(SA) Technical accounting, 
auditing and training 
(public and private 
sector) 

 

5 of 5** 

K Hoosain Independent non-executive member 

Member of the Operations Committee 

1 March 2018 CA(SA) Technical accounting and 
auditing (public and 
private sector) 

 

4 of 5** 

P Moalusi* Independent non-executive member 

Member of the Operations Committee 

1 March 2018 CA(SA) Public sector finance  4 of 5** 

 

N Themba* Non-executive member 

Member of the Operations Committee 

1 March 2018 SAIPA 

B Com Hons 

Diploma in Internal 
Auditing 

B ED 

Public sector finance and 
internal audit 

 

3 of 5** 
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Name of Board 
member 

Designation in terms of  Board 
structure 

Date appointed Qualifications Area of expertise No. of Board 
meetings 
attended 

I Lubbe Independent non-executive member 

Member of the Technical Committee 

1 March 2015 

Re-appointed for a second term 
on 1 March 2018 

CA(SA) Academic (public and 
private sector 
accounting) 

5 of 5 

K Makwetu* 
(Auditor-
General) 

Non-executive member 1 December 2013 CA(SA) Public sector audit 0 of 5 

Z Mxunyelwa* 
(Acting 
Accountant-
General) 

Non-executive member 5 September 2017 Certified Internal 
Auditor 

Public sector finance and 
internal audit 

 

0 of 5 

M Sedikela* 
(Alternate: K 
Makwetu) 

Non-executive member 19 October 2017 CA(SA) Public sector audit  

4 of 5 

[*] Indicates that the member is not remunerated.  

[**] Indicates that the attendance of an additional meeting which served as the Induction for new Board members.  
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Table 7 - Remuneration of Board members 

Name of Board 
member 

Board Operations 
Committee 

Technical 
Committee 

Fee for 
Chair 

Total 

2018/2019 

Total 

2017/2018 

Paid to Members 

C Braxton 102 817 - 54 644 - 157 461 - 

T Coetzer - - - - - 170 003 

B Colyvas - - - - - 106 412 

K Hoosain 55 363 25 884 - - 81 247 - 

I Lubbe 85 561 - 54 644 - 140 205 70 462 

V Ngobese 94 189 27 322 21 570 115 636 258 717 119 354 

Paid to employer 

F Abba 106 663 - 56 226 - 162 889 - 

N Ranchod - - - - - 83 605 

Total 444 593 53 206 187 084 115 636 800 519 549 836 

Table 8 - Remuneration of Chairperson of the Audit Committee 

Name of Chairperson Board Total 

2018/2019 

Total 

2017/2018 

O Matloa 15 818 15 818 38 826 

 

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT 

An effective, efficient and transparent system of 
internal control is implemented and maintained 
by the Board, with the assistance of the internal 
audit activity and the Audit Committee ensures 
this is done through the establishment of an 
appropriate control environment.  

Due to the size and the nature of the ASB’s 
operations, a comprehensive system of internal 
control and risk management is not feasible. The 
Chief Executive is responsible for supervising 
the day-to-day operations of the ASB while the 
Operations Committee monitors compliance 
with applicable legislation against the Board’s 
approved operating policies and procedures to 
ensure goals and objectives are achieved.  

 

 

 

 

 

EXTERNAL AND INTERNAL AUDIT 

Morar Incorporated are the external auditors of 
the ASB. No non-audit services were provided 
by the external auditors. Their report is set out 
on pages 38 to 40.  

The internal audit unit is shared with the 
National Treasury. Details of their activities are 
outlined in the Report of the Audit Committee 
on pages 32 to 35.  

COMBINED ASSURANCE 

The combined assurance model is an essential 
and fundamental element relied on by the Board 
in forming its view of the adequacy of risk 
management and internal control at the ASB.  

The combined assurance model recognises 
three lines of defence, which is set out in table 9.  
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Table 9 – Combined assurance 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

Operational management Risk resilience and compliance 
management 

Internal and external audit 

Assurance over:  

 adequacy of risk 
management,  

 effective adherence to 
systems of internal control, 
and  

 delivery against 
predetermined strategic 
objectives and performance 
measures. 

Oversight by the Operations 
Committee, Technical Committee 
and Audit Committee. 

Oversight over:  

 implementation of risk and 
compliance management, and  

 policies and processes. 

 

The internal audit activity provides 
assurance over: 

 adequacy of the systems of 
internal control,  

 risk management, and  

 control and governance processes. 

External audit provides independent 
reasonable assurance that:  

 financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, and  

 are prepared in all material 
respects in accordance with the 
Standards of GRAP.  

External audit also has a 
responsibility to report in the 
auditor’s report findings on:  

 the reported performance against 
predetermined objectives, and  

 compliance with legislation. 

FRAUD AND CORRUPTION  

The Board has developed and implemented a fraud 
prevention plan to address the risk of fraud and 
corruption. The policy on Whistleblowing was also 
revised to align it with amendments to legislation.  

No incidents were identified or reported during the 
financial year. 

MINIMISING CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 

To minimise conflicts of interest, the Board has 
developed and implemented appropriate 
procedures to deal with any conflicts. All Board 
members are required to complete a declaration of 
interests and notify the Chief Executive of any 
changes. Employees are required to make an annual 
declaration.  

At each Board meeting, the declarations of Board 
members are updated and any interests on any of 
the agenda items declared. Newly appointed 
employees are required to declare all actual or 
perceived conflicts of interest on appointment. 

When new conflicts of interest arise, employees are 
required to declare such interests in the appropriate 
register, and changes to declarations are reported to 
the Board. No violations of conflicts of interest were 
identified during the year. 

CODE OF CONDUCT 

The Board has approved and implemented a Code of 
Conduct that requires all Board members and the 
Secretariat to conduct the ASB’s operations fairly, 
impartially, in an ethical and proper manner, and in 
full compliance with all known and applicable 
legislation. The Board expects all employees to 
share its commitment to high moral, ethical and 
legal standards. Any violations of the Code of 
Conduct are reported to the Chief Executive, the 
Chairperson of the Board and to the internal and 
external audit, where applicable, with appropriate 
channels of reporting where anybody in the 
reporting line is the guilty party. No violations of the 
Code of Conduct occurred in the year. 
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STRATEGIC PLAN, ANNUAL PERFORMANCE PLAN AND 
BUDGET 

The Chief Executive prepares the strategic plan, 
annual performance plan and budget. This is done in 
consultation with the Operations Committee and the 
Technical Committee, with final approval by the 
Board. The Board submits these documents to the 
National Treasury for consideration. The documents 
are submitted to the Minister of Finance for 
approval and tabled in Parliament. Quarterly 
performance reports, financial statements and 
reports on compliance with legislation are 
submitted to the Public Entity Oversight Unit in the 
National Treasury. The annual performance plan 
serves as the performance agreement between the 
ASB and the Minister of Finance. 

FINANCIAL SUSTAINABILITY  

The current allocations made over the MTEF period 
are sufficient to allow the ASB to undertake its core 
activities, but funding is insufficient to allow for 
unfunded mandates, such as the requirement to 
translate the Standards of GRAP into 3 official 
languages in accordance with the Use of Official 
Languages Act.  

The ASB is conscious of expenditure control and 
complied with the National Treasury’s cost 
containment measures.  

COMPLIANCE WITH LEGISLATION 

The Board has established a framework and 
implemented various policies to ensure compliance 
with the applicable legislation. The register of 
applicable legislation is updated on a regular basis. 
The ASB is fully compliant with applicable 
legislation.  

Professional accountants have an obligation in 
terms of their Code of Conduct to report non-
compliance with laws and regulations affecting the 
financial statements. A policy is being developed to 
guide the Board and staff in this regard.     

COMPLIANCE WITH B-BBEE LEGISLATION 

The ASB has been evaluated against the DTI 
Specialised QSE Scorecard gazetted on 4 May 2017. 
Based on the evaluation the ASB is a Level 8 
contributor. 

 

 

Table 10 – Compliance with B-BBEE Legislation 

Elements Actual score Target score 

Management 
control 

14 25 

Skills development 1 30 

Enterprise and 
supplier 
development 

29 30 

Socio-economic 
development 

0 15 

Overall score 44 100 

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

The ASB is funded through the National Treasury 
allocation, which is indirectly funded through 
taxpayer and other public contributions. Its policy is 
therefore not to make donations or contributions. 

The ASB procurement policies are aligned with the 
Constitution, the PFMA and Treasury Regulations, 
and the B-BBEE Act. The ASB only does business 
with suppliers registered on the National Treasury 
Central Supplier Database and gives preference to 
suppliers that have achieved the highest score in 
terms of, among others, B-BBEE rating and price.  

In selecting suppliers, the ASB gives preference to 
small, medium and micro enterprises. The ASB pays 
well within the legislated 30-day period.  

HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES 

The Board has approved an occupational health and 
safety policy aimed at providing and maintaining a 
safe and healthy working environment for its 
employees. This policy is regularly reviewed. 

No breakdowns in the ASB’s policy concerning 
health, safety and other environmental issues were 
recorded in the reporting period. Refer to Section 4 
of this report for the ASB’s report on environmental 
sustainability. 
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Section 6 

MANAGING AND DEVELOPING THE PEOPLE 
OF THE ASB 

INTRODUCTION 

The employees of the ASB are key to the 
achievement of the strategic mandate of the 
organisation.  It is therefore imperative for the 
ASB to attract, develop, engage and retain staff 
with the right skills in the right positions and at 
the right time.  To help achieve this, the ASB 
provides market-related remuneration, focuses 
on learning and development and a professional 
and collaborative work environment supported 
by progressive human resource policies and 
practices. 

OVERVIEW OF HUMAN RESOURCES 

Human resource priorities and key strategies to 
attract and retain a capable workforce 

The ASB focused on engaging and retaining 
employees.  A key strategy used by the Board is 
to create a workplace and organisational culture 
that is inclusive and respectful to support the 
retention of the highly qualified and committed 
workforce. The Board further provides 
employees with an environment that enables 
them to achieve a healthy work-life balance.  
This enhance the levels of employee 
commitment to the organisation.  Policies that 
promotes work-life balance are reviewed and 
revised where appropriate and efforts to 
promote well-being at work will continue. 

Diagram 3 – Employee years of service 

 

At the same time, to help reduce levels of work-
related stress, the Board acknowledges the 
importance of having a respectful working 
environment aimed at preventing 
discrimination and harassment.  This 
contributes to a reduction in the levels of 
interpersonal conflict across the office and 
supports the more effective use of informal 
means of conflict resolution. 

Regular meetings are conducted to provide 
feedback on relevant matters and to ensure 
ongoing communication and inclusiveness.  
Employees of the ASB contribute voluntarily to 
an employee fund which caters for birthday 
celebrations and other noteworthy events. 

In 2019/2020 the ASB will further explore ways 
to retain employees by enhancing the value 
proposition offered within the current 
budgetary constraints. 

HUMAN RESOURCE OVERSIGHT STATISTICS 

Changes in employee complement 

During the reporting period, the employee 
complement of 7 remained unchanged from the 
previous period and there are no vacancies. The 
ASB team has remained relatively stable since 
the establishment of the Board which is evident 
by several long-serving employees.   
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Table 11 - Employment and vacancies 

Level 2017/2018 

No. of 
employees 

2018/2019  

Approved 
posts 

2018/2019 

No. of 
employees 

2018/2019 

Vacancies 

 

% of 
vacancies 

Management 2 2 2 0 0 

Professional qualified 3 3 3 0 0 

Skilled 1 1 1 0 0 

Semi-skilled  1 1 1 0 0 

TOTAL 7 7 7 0 0 

Remuneration of employees 

The ASB has a remuneration policy that establishes 
and maintains competitive, fair, equitable and 
market-related compensation to attract, motivate 
and retain employees. Details of the Chief 
Executive’s and Technical Director’s remuneration 
are provided in the notes to the financial statements. 

All the positions in the ASB have been graded using 
the Patterson scale of grading as this grading scale is 

sufficiently flexible to determine pay scales for each 
employee. Current remuneration is determined by 
reference to the qualifications and experience when 
recruited, time at the ASB, time in the particular 
position and work performance. Consideration is 
also given to recommendations on remuneration by 
the National Treasury. 

Remuneration is based on the total cost to the ASB, 
which includes a requirement to belong to a medical 
aid and to contribute to retirement funding. 

Table 12 - Personnel cost by salary band 

Level  Personnel 
expenditure 

% of 
Personnel 

exp. to total 
personnel 

cost 

No. of 
Employees 

Average 
personnel 

cost per 
employee 

 (R’000)   (R’000) 

Management 4 449 38.65% 2 2 020 

Professional qualified 4 041 35.11% 3 1 347 

Skilled  662 5.75% 1 662 

Semi-skilled 208 1.81% 1 208 

SUB-TOTAL 9 360    

Performance rewards 

The ASB’s compensation philosophy is to pay for 
performance. This means to compensate employees 
for sustained performance that helps deliver timely 
and tangible results.  By doing so we not only retain 
and motivate our employees but also drive better  

results and contribute to providing an equitable 
work environment. 

The clear and measurable objectives set for the 
organisation at the beginning of the year are based 
on the performance objectives approved by the 
Board.  
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The key performance indicators agreed with the 
Chief Executive filters through the organisation, 
with each employee aligning personal objectives 
according to their role.   This allows each employee 
to see how their role and effort contribute to the 
overall success of the organisation.   

The implemented incentive scheme has a variable 
component with 40% weighed in favour of 
organisational performance and 60% in favour of 
individual performance. Incentives to a maximum of 
30% of guaranteed remuneration are paid, at the 
discretion of the Board, when funds are available. 

The Chairperson evaluates the Chief Executive’s 
performance and the Operations Committee 
oversees the performance reviews and 
remuneration of the Secretariat. The Operations 
Committee, in its capacity as remuneration 
committee, makes recommendations to the Board 
on proposed changes to remuneration and 
incentives. The Board makes the final decision. 

EMPLOYMENT CHANGES 

There were no changes in employees during the 
last two years. 

LABOUR RELATIONS:  MISCONDUCT AND 
DISCIPLINARY ACTION 

No disciplinary action of any form was required or 
taken against any employee during the period under 
review. 

Development of employees 

The Board is committed to develop each individual 
employee’s talent, skills and ability to deliver 
quality services to its stakeholders. It thus ensures 
all staff receive up-to-date, relevant and effective 
training and development so the Board can fulfil its 
mission and vision. Various policies and procedures 
concerning the training and development of staff 
have therefore been developed and approved by the 
Board. These policies and procedures are aimed at 
ensuring staff develop at both a personal and a 
career level. As standard-setting is a specialised 
discipline, the standard-setting staff are given 
access to an executive coach to assist with areas of 
development. This form of development has yielded 
positive results over the years. 

 

Table 13 – Expenditure on training and development 

Personnel 
expenditure 

Training 
expenditure 

 

Training 
expenditure 

No. of 
employees 

trained 

Average 
training cost 

per Employee 

(R’000) (R’000) % of personnel 
cost 

 (R’000) 

9 360 159 1.7% 7 23 
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EMPLOYMENT EQUITY 

The ASB is committed to employment practices 
based on equality of opportunity and the ability 
of the person to perform the essential functions 
of the job, regardless of colour, creed, race, 
nationality, sex, age, marital status, sexual 
orientation or mental or physical disability.  The  

 

ASB is committed to ensure greater diversity 
among its staff, particularly in terms of 
demographic representation and gender 
balance.   

The demographic composition of the ASB at 
reporting date was as follows: 

 

Table 14 – Employment equity 

Level FEMALES 

 African  Coloured  Indian White  

Management 0 0 0 2 

Professional qualified 1 0 0 2 

Skilled  0 1 0 0 

Semi-skilled 0 1 0 0 

TOTAL 1 2 0 4 
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Section 7 

REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE 
We are pleased to present our report for the 
financial year ended 31 March 2019. 

Background 

 The Audit and Risk Committee (the 
Committee) is established as a statutory 
committee in terms of section 51 (1) (a) of 
the Public Finance Management Act and 
Treasury Regulation 27.1. 

 The Committee has adopted formal terms of 
reference as the Committee charter and has 
fulfilled its responsibilities for the year, in 
compliance with its terms of reference. 

Membership and Attendance 

 The Committee consists solely of 
independent members who are financially 
literate and also have appropriate 
experience.  

 The Committee met 5 times during the year.  
 Table 15 includes a list of its members, 

qualifications and a record of their 
attendance.  

The Audit Committee’s Responsibilities 

The Committee in conjunction with the Risk 
Committee is satisfied that it has discharged its 
responsibilities in assisting the Accounting 
Authority with the following activities: 

 Reviewing the adequacy, reliability and 
accuracy of the financial information 
provided by management and other users of 
such information; 

  Overseeing the activities of, and ensuring 
coordination between, the activities of 
internal and external audit; 

  Providing a forum for discussing exposures 
to financial and enterprise-wide risks and 
monitoring of controls designed to minimize 
these risks; 

  Reviewing the entity’s quarterly 
performance information, annual report, 
including annual performance information 
and annual financial statements, and any 
other public reports or announcements 

containing financial & non-financial 
information; 

  Receiving and dealing with any complaints 
concerning the accounting practices, internal 
and external audit or the content and audit of 
its financial statements or related matters; 
and 

  Annually reviewing the Committee’s work in 
line with the charter and making 
recommendations to the Accounting 
Authority to ensure the Committee’s 
effectiveness. 

Risk Management  

 Management is responsible for the 
establishment and maintenance of an 
effective system of governance, risk 
management, the prevention and detection 
of fraud and internal controls. 

 Internal Audit was guided by the 
consolidated risk profile, provided by the 
Enterprise Risk Management unit, critical 
audit areas and managements inputs in the 
formulation of its 3-year strategic and annual 
plans. 

 The entity shared a Risk Committee with the 
National Treasury which was chaired by an 
independent audit committee member who 
reported directly to the Audit Committee 
until October 2018. However, in light of the 
Committee’s performance the Accounting 
Authority took a decision to terminate the 
shared arrangement and delegated the Risk 
Management Committee’s responsibilities to 
the Operations Committee.  

 The shared Risk Committee met twice and 
the Operations Committee in its capacity as 
Risk Committee met twice during the year 
under review. 

 A risk register is updated quarterly to ensure 
that all the major risks including emerging 
risks facing the organisation are effectively 
managed. The Audit Committee monitors 
management’s implementation of the risk 
management plans on a quarterly basis.
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Table 15 – Details of audit committee members and attendance at meetings 

Name of member Qualifications Appointment 
Date 

Number of meetings 
attended 

Ms Octavia Matloa 

(Chairperson) 

Chartered Accountant (SA), B.Com (Hons) 
and CTA. 

1 July 2013 5 of 5 

Ms Anna Badimo B.Sc Computer Science 

B.Sc Hons Computer Science 

MBA, MSC, CISM, CGEIT,  CRISC   M. InstD, 
Cobol Programming Diploma, 
Project Management Diploma and Certificate 
in IT Auditing. 

1 July 2015 4 of 5 

Mr Ameen Amod Master in Business Administration, Bachelor 
of Commerce, Certificate in Internal Audit 
(CIA), Certified Government Auditing 
Professional Auditor and Certification in Risk 
Management Assurance, Chartered Director 
(SA) 

1 July 2015*  1 of 2 

Mr Brandon 
Furstenburg 

Master of Science (MSc) in Financial 
Management, Master of Commerce (MCom) 
in Economics, BCom Hons, Bcom and FAIS 
exams: RE1, RE3 & RE5. M.InstD 

1 June 2017  5 of 5 

Mr  Charl de Kock Masters in IT Auditing, Honours degree in 
Accounting, Certified Information Systems 
Auditor (CISA), Certified Internal Auditor 
(CIA), South African Institute of Professional 
Accountants  

(SAIPA) 

1 February 
2017 

 5 of 5 

Mr Luyanda Mangquku Chartered Accountant (SA), Masters in 
Business Leadership, Honours Bachelor of  
Accounting and Honours Bachelor of 
Commerce, Advanced Company Law I & II 

1 July 2015* 2 of 2 

Ms Pumla Mzizi MCom in Transport Economics on PPPs – on 
hold 

BCom Honours in Transport Economics 

CA (SA) 

BCompt Honours CTA  

BBusSci Finance Honours 

 

1 October 
2018^ 

2 of 2 

* Contracts expired on 30 June 2018 

^Contract commenced 01 October 2018 
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Internal Audit  

The Committee approved a risk based 3 year 
rolling Strategic Plan and an Annual Internal 
Audit Coverage Plan for periods 1 April 2018 to 
31 March 2021 covering the key audit activities 
for the 2018/2019 financial year: 

Type 
Total 

Planned 
Audits 

%  

Completed 

Regularity Audit  2 100% 

Total planned audits 2  

 
The Committee reviewed all the internal audit 
reports; and is satisfied: 

 With the activities of the internal audit 
function, including its annual work 
program, co-ordination with the external 
auditors and the responses of management 
to specific recommendations.  

 That internal audit is conducted in 
accordance with the standards set by the 
Institute of Internal Auditors  

Accounting and Auditing Concerns’ Identified by 
Internal Audit 

There are no accounting and auditing concerns 
that have been noted and brought to our 
attention.  

Other Identified Concerns  

The Committee noted the following areas of 
concern:  

 Financial constraints limiting the 
organization’s ability to deliver on its 
mandate; and 

 Challenges in recruiting and retaining 
specialized skills.  
 

Other than these matters, nothing significant 
has come to our attention to indicate any 
material breakdown in the functioning of 
controls, procedures and systems. 

The Committee is therefore of the opinion that 
Internal Audit is independent, has provided 
objective assurance and consulting activities 
that were designed to add value and improve 
the organisation’s operations; and it is satisfied 
with the effectiveness of the Chief Audit 
Executive. 

The Adequacy, Reliability and Accuracy of the 
Financial Information 

The Committee is of the opinion, based on the 
information and explanations provided by 
management as well as the results of audits 
performed by the internal auditors, and Morar 
Inc on behalf of the Auditor-General, that the 
financial information provided by management 
to users of such information is adequate, 
reliable and accurate.  

The external auditors commended management 
for submitting financial statements that were 
free from material misstatements and the 
Committee is satisfied with the effectiveness of 
the finance function. 

External Audit 

 The Committee has reviewed the 
independence and objectivity of the external 
auditors; noted that there were no non-
audit services rendered by them during the 
year. 

 In line with the legislative requirements we 
have also considered the external auditors’ 
independence declaration in the auditors’ 
report, “We are independent of the entity in 
accordance with the Independent Regulatory 
Board for Auditors’ Code of professional 
conduct of registered auditors (IRBA code) 
and other independence requirements 
applicable to performing audits of the 
financial statements in South Africa. We have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with the IESBA code and in 
accordance other ethical requirements 
applicable to performing audits in South 
Africa. The IRBA code is consistent with the 
International Ethics Standards Board for 
Accountants’ Code of ethics for professional 
accountants (parts A and B”; and the 
Committee is therefore satisfied with their 
independence. 

 Morar Incorporated was appointed as the 
auditor of the Accounting Standards Board 
until 2022. 

 The external auditors attended 5 meetings 
of the Committee 

 The Committee did not have any in-camera 
meetings with the external auditors. 
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 The Committee reviewed and approved the 
external audit report and no accounting and 
auditing concerns were noted.  

The Effectiveness of Internal Controls  

 The Committee considered all the reports 
issued by the various assurance providers 
e.g. Internal and External auditors, Risk 
Committee, etc. 

 Noted managements’ actions in addressing 
identified control weaknesses and is 
satisfied with the following achievements 
reported for the year: 

Assurance 
Provider 

Total 
Findings 

Resolved  

Findings 
Unresolved 

Findings 

Internal 
Audit 

0 0 0 

External 
Audit 

0 0 0 

 
In light of the above we report that the system 
of internal control for the period under review 
is considered to have been adequate.  

Compliance with Legal and Regulatory 
Provisions  

 The Committee has reviewed the in-year 
management and quarterly reports 
submitted in terms of the Public Finance 
Management are satisfied that no material 
deviations were noted. 

 The Committee also noted managements’ 
policies and procedures to ensure 
compliance with applicable laws and 
regulations. 

 The Committee also noted the external 
auditor’s report highlighting that no 
instances of non-compliance were 
identified. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Evaluation of Financial Statements and 
Annual Report 

The Committee has evaluated the annual 
financial statements and performance 
information for the year ended 31 March 2019 
and duly recommended it for the Accounting 
Authority’s approval prior to being submitted to 
the external auditors for audit.  

The Committee considered the Auditors’ 
Management and Audit reports; and concurs 
with their conclusions. The Committee 
therefore accepts the audit opinion expressed 
by the external auditors on the annual financial 
statements, and annual report. 

We would like to express our appreciation to the 
Board for their leadership and support; Chief 
Executive Officer, Internal Audit and 
management for their commitment and 
achievement of an unqualified audit opinion. 

 

 

 

Octavia M. Matloa 

Chairperson 

30 June 2019  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY OF 
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS BOARD  
 
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
Unqualified Audit Opinion 
 
We have audited the financial statements of the Accounting Standards Board set out 
on pages 43 to 55 which comprise the statement of financial position as at 
31 March 2019, the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net 
assets, cash flow statement and statement of comparison of budget information with 
actual information for the year then ended, as well as the notes to the financial 
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.  
 
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the Accounting Standards Board as at 31 March 2019, and its 
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 
Generally Recognised Accounting Practice and the requirements of the Public 
Finance Management Act of South Africa. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing 
(ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 
auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of this 
auditor’s report. 
 
We are independent of the entity in accordance with the Independent Regulatory 
Board for Auditors’ Code of professional conduct of registered auditors (IRBA code) 
and other independence requirements applicable to performing audits of the financial 
statements in South Africa. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with the IESBA code and in accordance other ethical requirements 
applicable to performing audits in South Africa. The IRBA code is consistent with the 
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of ethics for professional 
accountants (parts A and B). 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. 
 
Responsibilities of Accounting Authority for the financial statements 
 
The accounting authority is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in accordance with the South African Standards of Generally 
Recognised Accounting Practice and the requirements of the Public Finance 
Management Act, and for such internal control as the accounting authority determines 
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
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In preparing the financial statements, the accounting authority is responsible for assessing the 
Accounting Standards Board’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
relating to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the accounting 
authority either intends to liquidate the public entity or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so.  
 
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the ISAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.  
 
As part of an audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing, we exercise 
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. 
 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the accounting authority. 
 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of the accounting authority's use of the going concern 
basis of accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures 
in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. 
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the entity to cease to continue 
as a going concern. 
 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 
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We communicate with the accounting authority regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies 
in internal control that we identify during our audit. 
 
We also provide the accounting authority with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships 
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where 
applicable, related safeguards. 

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REPORT 

Introduction and scope  

In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA) and the 
general notice issued in terms thereof, we have a responsibility to report material findings on the 
reported performance information against predetermined objectives for selected objectives 
presented in the annual performance report. We performed procedures to identify findings but 
not to gather evidence to express assurance. 
 
Our procedures address the reported performance information, which must be based on the 
approved performance planning documents of the entity. We have not evaluated the 
completeness and appropriateness of the performance indicators/ measures included in the 
planning documents. Our procedures also did not extend to any disclosures or assertions relating 
to planned performance strategies and information in respect of future periods that may be 
included as part of the reported performance information. Accordingly, our findings do not extend 
to these matters.  
 
We evaluated the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information in 
accordance with the criteria developed from the performance management and reporting 
framework, as defined in the general notice, for the following selected objectives presented in the 
annual performance report of the entity for the year ended 31 March 2019: 
 

Objectives 

Pages in the 
annual 

performance 
report 

Objective 1: Set Standards of GRAP 11 

Objective 2: Monitor the application of the Standards of GRAP  12 

Objective 3: Promote the adoption of the Standards of GRAP 12 

Objective 4: Influence the development of international standards 13 

Objective 5: Manage the resources to ensure the ASB is 
operationally effective 

13 
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We performed procedures to determine whether the reported performance information was 
properly presented and whether performance was consistent with the approved performance 
planning documents. We performed further procedures to determine whether the indicators and 
related targets were measurable and relevant, and assessed the reliability of the reported 
performance information to determine whether it was valid, accurate and complete. 

We did not identify any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported 
performance information for the following objectives:  
 
Objective 1: Set Standards of GRAP.  
Objective 2: Monitor the application of the Standards of GRAP.  
Objective 3: Promote the adoption of the Standards of GRAP.  
Objective 4: Influence the development of international standards. 
Objective 5: Manage the resources to ensure the ASB is operationally effective.  
 
Achievement of planned targets 
 
Refer to the annual performance report on pages 10 to 13 for information on the achievement of 
planned targets for the year and explanations provided for the under/over achievement of targets. 
 
 
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LEGISLATION 
 
Introduction and scope 
 
In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms thereof we have a 
responsibility to report material findings on the compliance of the entity with specific matters in 
key legislation. We performed procedures to identify findings but not to gather evidence to 
express assurance. 
 
We did not identify any instances of material non-compliance with specific matters in key 
legislation, as set out in the general notice issued in terms of PAA. 
 
Other information 
 
The accounting authority is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises 
the information included in the annual report, which includes the accounting authority’s report, 
and the audit committee’s report. The other information does not include the financial statements, 
the auditor’s report and those selected objectives presented in the annual performance report 
that have been specifically reported in this auditor’s report.  
 
Our opinion on the financial statements and findings on the reported performance information 
and compliance with legislation do not cover the other information and we do not express an audit 
opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 
In connection with our audit, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, 
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements and 
the selected objectives presented in the annual performance report, or our knowledge obtained 
in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 
 



Section 7 ASB ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 
 
 

 40 
 

Internal control deficiencies 
 
We considered internal control relevant to our audit of the financial statements, annual 
performance report and compliance with legislation, however the objective is not to express any 
form of assurance thereon. We did not identify any significant deficiencies in internal control. 
 
 
Auditor tenure 
 
In terms of the IRBA rule published in Government Gazette Number 39475 dated 
4 December 2015, we report that Morar Incorporated is the auditor of the Accounting Standards 
Board for the second year as at 31 March 2019, which will continue for a further three years, 
subject to reappointment. 
 
 
 
 
 
________________________ 
Per: Roshan Morar 
Director 
Morar Incorporated 
Chartered Accountants (S.A.) 
Registered Auditors 
 
Eco Fusion 6,  
Block C, Unit 25 
324 Witch-Hazel Avenue 
Highveld 
Centurion 
0169 
 
04 July 2019 
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Section 8 

STATEMENT OF BOARD MEMBERS’ 
RESPONSIBILITY 

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we 
confirm the following:  

All information and amounts disclosed in the 
annual report is consistent with the annual 
financial statements audited by Morar 
Incorporated, the independent external 
auditors. 

The annual report is complete, accurate and is 
free from any omissions. 

The annual report has been prepared having 
regard to the guidelines on the annual report as 
issued by the National Treasury. 

The annual financial statements have been 
prepared in accordance with the Standards of 
GRAP and the PFMA. 

The Board is responsible for the preparation of 
the annual financial statements and for the 
judgements made in this information.   

 

Signed on behalf of the Board by: 

 

 

 

 

 

V Ngobese 

Chairperson of the Board 

4 July 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

The Board is responsible for establishing and 
implementing a system of internal control, 
which has been designed to provide reasonable 
assurance as to the integrity and reliability of 
the performance information, the human 
resources information and the annual financial 
statements. 

The independent external auditors are engaged 
to express an independent opinion on the 
annual financial statements. 

In our opinion, the annual report fairly reflects 
the operations, the performance information, 
the human resources information and the 
financial affairs of the entity for the financial 
year ended 31 March 2019.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

E Swart 

Chief Executive 

4 July 2019 
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 

 

Figures in Rand Note 2019 2018 

Revenue    

Non-exchange revenue    

  Transfer  14 054 000 13 463 000 

Exchange revenue    

  Interest  291 757 245 025 

  Other revenue  265 714 231 242 

  557 471 476 267 

  14 611 471 13 939 267 

Expenditure    

Depreciation 6 (50 445) 25 896 

Employee benefits 1 (11 523 605) (10 812 042) 

Operating expenditure 2 (3 064 021) (2 874 229) 

  (14 638 071) (13 660 375) 

(Deficit)/surplus for the year  (26 600) 278 892 
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 MARCH 2019 

 

Figures in Rand Note 2019 2018 

Assets    

Current assets    

Cash and cash equivalents 4 2 557 524 2 796 248 

Receivables from exchange transactions 5 55 186 61 181 

  2 612 710 2 857 429 

Non-current assets    

Property, plant and equipment 6 354 373 233 437 

Total assets  2 967 083 3 090 866 

Net assets and liabilities    

Liabilities    

Current liabilities    

Payables from exchange transactions 7 112 746 281 242 

Employee benefit provisions 8 2 564 183 2 492 870 

Total liabilities 

Net Assets 

 2 676 929 

290 154 

2 774 112 

316 754 

Accumulated surplus  290 154  316 754 

Total net assets and liabilities  2 967 083 3 090 866 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 

 

Figures in Rand  Accumulated 
surplus 

Total net 
assets 

Balance at 01 April 2017  37 862 37 862 

Surplus for the year  278 892 278 892 

Balance at 01 April 2018  316 754 316 754 

Deficit for the year  (26 600) (26 600) 

Balance at 31 March 2019  290 154 290 154 

 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 

 

Figures in Rand Note 2019 2018 

Cash flow from operating activities    

Cash receipts    

  Transfer  14 054 000 13 463 000 

  Other revenue  265 669 230 893 

  14 319 669 13 693 893 

Cash payments    

  Employees  (11 453 201) (8 798 773) 

  Suppliers and other service providers  (3 225 613) (2 770 844) 

  (14 678 814) (11 569 617) 

Net cash flows from operating activities 9 (359 145) 2 124 276 

Cash flows from investing activities    

Interest   291 757 245 025 

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 6 (188 335) (17 373) 

Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and 
equipment 

6 17 000 1 500 

Net cash flows from investing activities  120 422 229 152 

    

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash 
equivalents  

 (238 723) 2 353 428 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of 
the year 

 2 796 248 442 820 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the 
year 

4 2 557 524 2 796 248 
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STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019  

 

Figures in Rand Note Actual Last Publicly 
Available 

Budget 

Reprioriti-
sation 

Adjustment 
Budget 

Variance 

Revenue       

Transfer  14 054 000 14 054 000 - 14 054 000 - 

Interest 15a 291 757 151 705 - 151 705 140 052 

Other revenue 15b 265 714 24 000 - 24 000 241 714 

  14 611 471 14 229 705 - 14 229 705 381 766 

Less: operating expenditure  14 638 071 14 267 745 (11 439) 14 256 305 381 766 

Employee benefits 15c 11 523 605 10 151 722 1 371 883 11 523 605 - 

Board remuneration 15d 816 337 1 216 514 (400 177) 816 337 - 

Domestic travel 15e 141 212 184 471 (43 259) 141 212 - 

Foreign travel 15f 506 320 603 885 (97 565) 506 320 - 

Training and refreshments 15g 169 086 266 775 (97 689) 169 086 - 

Communication and marketing 15h 232 300 295 887 (63 587) 232 300 - 

Printing and publications 15i 38 011 72 415 (34 404) 38 011 - 

Administration 15j 1 211 200 1 476 076 (646 640) 829 436 381 766 

(Deficit) for the year  (26 600) (38 040) (11 439) (26 600) - 
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

The ASB is a juristic person established in accordance with the PFMA and listed in Schedule 3A of 
that Act. The principal activity of the ASB is the setting of Standards of GRAP. 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation and presentation of these financial 
statements are set out below. The accounting policies described below relate to the material activities 
of the ASB. As the ASB is a standard-setter, its significant accounting policies relate to revenue 
recognition, employee related costs and assets. A statement of accounting policies used by the ASB is 
published on the ASB website. 

BASIS OF PREPARATION 

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Standards of GRAP, as set 
out in the ASB’s Directive on Determining the GRAP Reporting Framework. They are presented in 
South African Rand, which is the functional currency of the Republic of South Africa.  

These financial statements are prepared on an accrual basis using the going-concern principle. Assets 
and liabilities are measured using the historical cost measurement basis, unless stated otherwise.   

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

Employee benefits include monthly salaries, leave entitlements, performance bonuses, and post-
retirement benefits.  

Leave pay 

Provision for employee entitlement to annual leave represents the present obligation that the ASB 
has as a result of employees’ services provided up to the reporting date. The provision is calculated 
using salary rates effective at the reporting date. 

Performance bonuses  

The provision for performance bonuses represents the obligation to reward performance based on 
the performance incentive arrangements in place for services rendered up to the reporting date. The 
provision is the best estimate of performance bonuses payable in accordance with the rules of the 
arrangements at the reporting date and using past history.  

Post-retirement employee benefits 

The ASB contributes to a retirement annuity fund on behalf of its employees and is not exposed to 
any actuarial or investment risk of the fund. As the contributions made are those of the employees 
from guaranteed remuneration, the contributions paid are expensed as remuneration. 

REVENUE 

Transfer from the National Treasury 

The transfer from the National Treasury is recognised when it is probable that future economic 
benefits will flow to the ASB and when the amount can be reliably measured. The ASB determines 
this to be the transfer it is entitled to at the start of the financial year. The transfer is subject to 
conditions because, if the ASB does not utilise the funds for the purposes agreed with the National 
Treasury, the ASB must return unutilised funds. A liability is recognised for any unutilised funds.  
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Services received in kind 

The ASB recognises services received in kind in the statement of financial performance at the fair 
value of these services received, when they are significant to the ASB’s operations, and to the extent 
that a fair value can be determined reliably. Where the services are not significant, and/or the fair 
value cannot be determined reliably, the nature and type of services received are disclosed. Services 
received in kind include shared services with the National Treasury, volunteer project group 
members and Board members in public service, training provided to the ASB staff, and the hosting of 
events. While these services are important for the ASB’s operations, they are not significant and 
therefore not recognised.  

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment 
losses. The depreciable amounts of property, plant and equipment are allocated on systematic bases 
over their useful lives. Management expects to use the assets for their full useful lives and therefore 
the residual values are estimated to be negligible. Useful lives and residual values are assessed when 
there is an indication that there is a change in useful life.  

The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment are currently as follows:  

Item Average useful life 

Furniture and fittings 12 - 20 years 

Office equipment   3 - 12 years 

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount 
and are recognised in surplus or deficit for the period. 

BUDGET INFORMATION 

The financial statements and the budget are prepared on the same basis of accounting and are 
presented as a separate statement. 

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 

Aspects where judgement has been exercised that may have a significant risk of causing a material 
adjustment to the carrying value of assets within the next financial period are discussed below. 

Determination of adequacy of leave pay provision 

The leave pay provision is based on actual days leave due to employees at their rate of remuneration. 
Remuneration increases take effect on 1 April of the financial year. 

Determination of useful lives for property, plant and equipment 

The nature of the ASB’s operations results in difficulties in determining the useful lives of items of 
property, plant and equipment. The asset lives exceed industry norms for similar assets. In re-
assessing useful lives, the depreciation charge in the statement of financial performance is adjusted.  

STANDARDS AND AMENDMENTS TO STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT EFFECTIVE 

The Standards of GRAP and amendments to Standards of GRAP that have been issued and are not yet 
effective, are not relevant to the ASB, and accordingly, will not have any impact on the ASB when they 
become effective.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 

 

  2019 2018 

1. Employee benefit costs 

Guaranteed salary  9 359 800 8 633 479 

Contribution to UIF  12 492 12 492 

Employee cost  9 372 292 8 645 971 

Movement in provision for performance bonus  2 050 006 2 080 000 

Movement in leave provision  101 307 86 071 

  11 523 605 10 812 042 

 

2. Operating expenditure has been arrived at after charging 

Auditors’ remuneration - Fees  88 808 138 590 

Domestic travel  141 212 68 557 

Foreign travel  506 320 388 877 

Operating lease expense  581 642 581 642 

 

3. Taxation 

The ASB is exempt from income tax in accordance with Section 10(1)(cA)(i) of the Income Tax 
Act, Act No. 58 of 1962, as more than 80% of its expenditure is defrayed from funds voted by 
Parliament.  

The ASB is exempt from the payment of Value Added Tax (VAT) on the transfer received. As a 
result, any VAT paid by the ASB is also not refundable by SARS. Accordingly, some of the items 
of revenue and expenditure and assets and liabilities include VAT. 

 

4. Cash and cash equivalents    

Cash and cash equivalents consist of the following:    

Financial assets    

Cash on hand and at bank  2 144 727 88 162 

Interest bearing call account  412 797 2 708 086 

  2 557 524 2 796 248 

Refer to note 11  on financial instruments for how risk is managed in relation to the financial 
assets listed above. 
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5. Receivables from exchange transactions    

Deposits  55 186 55 186 

Prepayments  - 5 996 

   55 186 61 181 

Refer to note 11 on financial instruments for how risk is managed in relation to the financial assets 
listed above. 

 

6. Property, plant and equipment 

 

 2019 2018 

 Cost Accumulated 
depreciation 

Carrying 
value 

Cost Accumulated 
depreciation 

Carrying 
value 

Furniture and 
fittings 

 

424 504 

 

(262 872) 

 

161 632 

 

390 618 

 

(240 131) 

 

150 487 

Office 
equipment 

 

301 530 

 

(108 789) 

 

192 741 

 

239 813 

 

(156 863) 

 

82 950 

Total 726 034 (371 661) 354 373 630 431 (396 994) 233 437 

 

 Furniture 
and fittings 

Office 
equipment 

Total 

Balance 1 April 2017 107 862 83 456 191 318 

Additions - 17 373 17 373 

Disposals at cost - (34 919) (34 919) 

Depreciation on disposals - 33 769 33 769 

Depreciation 42 625 (16 729) 25 896 

Balance 1 April 2018 150 487  82 950  233 437  

Additions 33 885 154 450 188 335 

Disposals at cost - (92 733) (92 733) 

Depreciation on disposals - 75 779 75 779 

Depreciation (22 740) (27 705)  (50 445) 

Balance 31 March 2019 161 632 192 741 354 373 
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  2019 2018 

Proceeds on disposal  17 000 1 500 

Disposals at net book value  (16 955) (1 151) 

Profit on disposal  45 349 

 

7. Payables from exchange transactions    

Payables at amortised cost  32 200 124 284 

Accruals for goods and services  6 085 53 232 

Payroll related accruals  10 242 9 333 

  48 527 186 849 

Straight-lining of operating lease  64 219 94 393 

  112 746 281 242 

Refer to note 11 on financial instruments for how risk is managed in relation to the financial liabilities 
listed above. 

 

8. Employee benefit provisions   

Provision for leave pay  514 177 412 870 

Provision for performance bonuses  2 050 006 2 080 000 

 2 564 183 2 492 870 

 

Provision for leave pay   

Opening balance 412 870 326 799 

Increase in provision 822 546 755 349 

Change in estimate 31 376 15 112 

Amounts utilised during the year (752 615) (684 390) 

Closing balance 514 177 412 870 

In terms of the ASB's leave pay policy, employees are entitled to accumulated vested leave pay benefits 
not taken within a leave cycle, provided that any leave pay benefits not taken within a period of one year 
after the end of a leave cycle are forfeited. 

 

Provision for performance bonuses   

Opening balance 2 080 000 152 802 

Increase in provision 2 050 006 2 080 000 

Performance bonuses paid (2 080 000) (152 802) 

Closing balance 2 050 006 2 080 000 
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During the period under review, the Operations Committee, in its capacity as remuneration committee, 
made recommendations to the Board to reward performance.  

 

 

9. Net cash flows from operating activities    

 Note 2019 2018 

(Deficit)/surplus for the year  (26 600) 278 892 

Adjustments for:    

Depreciation  50 445 (25 896) 

Increase in provisions  71 313 2 166 071 

Interest  (291 757) (245 025) 

Profit on disposal 

Straight-lining of leases 

 (45) 

(30 174) 

(349) 

1 668 

Changes in working capital:    

Receivables from exchange transactions  5 995 7 322 

Payables from exchange transactions  (138 322) (58 408) 

  359 145 2 124 276 

 

10. Financial instruments    

Financial assets    

Cash and cash equivalents 4 2 557 524 2 796 248 

Financial liabilities    

Payables from exchange transactions 7 48 527 186 849 

 

11. Financial risk management 

Credit risk 

Cash and cash equivalents 

The ASB holds cash and cash equivalents with an investment grade rated registered banking institution, 
which it regards as having an insignificant credit risk. The balance is held at the Corporation for Public 
Deposits (CPD), which has the same rating as the South African Reserve Bank. Funds deposited with the 
CPD are kept at a maximum in order to maximise interest earned. The interest rates on this account 
fluctuate in line with movements in current money market rates. Rates earned on funds deposited with 
the CPD are higher than those earned on funds in the short-term money market account. 

Liquidity risk 

Payables from exchange transactions  

The Board is only exposed to liquidity risk with regard to the payment of its payables. These payables 
are all due within the short-term. The ASB manages its liquidity risk by holding sufficient cash in its bank 
account, supplemented by cash available in investment accounts. 
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12. Related parties    

Compensation of key management   2019 2018 

Chief Executive’s remuneration    

Salary  2 545 800 2 236 000 

Performance bonus  563 523 576 485 

UIF contributions  1 785 1 785 

  3 111 108 2 814 270 

Technical Director    

Salary  1 903 000 1 800 000 

Performance bonus  422 520 427 766 

UIF contributions  1 785 1 785 

  2 327 305 2 229 551 

 The Board appointed the Chief Executive, Ms E Swart, on 1 March 2003 on a permanent basis.  

Chairperson’s fee    

Fee  115 636 109 607 

Board meetings  94 189 34 512 

Operations Committee meetings  27 322 25 884 

Technical Committee meetings  21 570 - 

  258 717 170 003 

Other Board members’ fees    

Board meetings  366 222 198 962 

Operations Committee meetings  25 884 43 140 

Technical Committee meetings  165 514 176 557 

  557 620 418 659 

  816 337 588 662 

Those Board members employed by national, provincial, or local government or other organs of state 
are not remunerated. The total remuneration reflected for Board members includes the remuneration 
paid to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee.  
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Average number of members    

Board  10 10 

Technical Committee  8 8 

Operations Committee  4 4 

Average number of employees    

Secretariat  7 7 

The Minister of Finance is the Executive Authority and the National Treasury has the responsibility to 
make provision for funding the activities of the ASB by way of a transfer listed in the Estimates of 
National Expenditure. The ASB also receives Audit Committee and internal audit services that are paid 
for by the National Treasury. 

As the ASB is a national public entity and controlled by the national government, any other controlled 
entity of the national government is a related party. All transactions with such entities are at arm’s length 
and on normal commercial terms, except where employees of national departments or national public 
entities participate in the ASB’s processes and do not receive any remuneration. 

 

13. Commitments 

Lease commitments 

   

At the reporting date, the ASB had commitments outstanding under a non-cancellable operating lease, 
which fall due as follows: 

  2019 2018 

Office building and parking    

Due within one year  653 061 619 015 

Due within 2-5 years  - 653 061 

  653 061 1 272 076 

The ASB renewed the lease agreement for a term of five years with effect from 1 April 2015. There was 
no increase in the rental in the first year with an escalation of rental of 5.5% per annum thereafter. The 
cost of the lease is straight-lined over the period of the lease. 

Other commitments   

Board remuneration - 237 291 

 - 237 291 

A commitment was made for the induction of new Board members and the remuneration of Board 
members for the fourth meeting of 2017/2018, scheduled for 16 May 2018. Estimation was based on the 
expected attendance and duration of the meeting. Due to the delay in the appointment of the new Board, 
the meeting could not be held before the year end. These amounts were paid during the 2018/2019 
financial year when the meetings were held.  
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14. Services received in kind 

The ASB received services in kind from: 

 The National Treasury for the shared internal audit activity and remuneration paid to the members 
of the Audit Committee.   

 Members of project groups who are not remunerated by the ASB for their contributions to standard-
setting. Refer to Annexure A for the detail of support received. 

 Board members who are employees of organs of state who are not remunerated. 

 W.Consulting for allowing the Secretariat to attend training courses free of charge. A previous Board 
member, B. Colyvas, is an employee of W.Consulting. The value of services received in kind during 
the reporting period is R12 256 (2018: R19 161). 

 ASB events, meetings and workshops are hosted by a number of organisations.  

A schedule of services received in kind is available on the ASB’s website.  

15. Budget variances 

The Board approved the budget and submitted it to the Executive Authority in terms of section 53(1) of 
the PFMA. 

Explanations for significant variances from the publicly available budget are: 

a. Interest earned was higher than expected on bank balances in the first quarter of the financial year 
because of the timing of the first Board meeting. 

b. Fees earned by an employee for chairing an audit committee was higher than expected, but non-
recurring as the term on the audit committee has ended. 

c. From a budget perspective, to enable the ASB to set a balanced budget, on the cash basis of 
accounting, performance incentives are used as a balancing figure. The actual performance 
incentives were higher. 

d. When budgeting for Board remuneration, an assumption was made that the Board meetings would 
last a full day and that all the members that are paid would attend. The actual lengths of the Technical 
Committee and Board meetings were shorter. 

e. Provision was made in the budget for attendance of the Budget speech, the tabling of the Treasury 
Vote, the tabling of the MTEF and attending SCoF meetings when requested. To give effect to cost 
containment measures none of these were attended. 

f. Booking early for international flights, i.e. as soon as the meeting dates become known, enables the 
ASB to make use of discounted ticket prices. 

g. As most of the employees have been at the ASB for an extended period, the need for external training 
reduced, while the need for executive coaching increased. 

h. The use of fibre has resulted in savings on the cost of communication, both for electronic and for 
telephone usage.  

i. The reduction in paper usage and bringing the designing of the annual report inhouse, resulted in 
further savings. 

j. Strict controls over procurement, ensuring that purchases are at the lowest prices and reviewing the 
relationships with existing service providers contributed to further savings on administration costs. 
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ANNEXURE A - TECHNICAL SUPPORT RECEIVED IN THE DEVELOPMENT OF THE BOARD’S 
PRONOUNCEMENTS 

The table below outlines the technical support received from representatives of the following 
organisations, in the form of participation in project groups, during the development of 
pronouncements issued by the Board.  

Organisation Financial 
instruments 

Materiality Landfill  

Sites 

Adjustments 

to Revenue 

Application 
of Standards 
of GRAP by 

Public 
Entities that 
Apply IFRS® 
Standards 

Review of 
amendments 

to GRAP 16 
and GRAP 17 

PREPARERS       

DEPARTMENTS       

Department of Higher 
Education and 
Training 

     X 

PUBLIC ENTITIES       

Armscor    X   

South African Post 
Office 

   X   

SANRAL    X   

Umgeni Water    X   

Competition Tribunal  X     

Compensation Fund X      

Road Accident Fund X X     

Property Management 
Trading Entity 

X X  X  X 

South African Revenue 
Service 

X X  X  X 

MUNICIPALITIES       

Nelson Mandela Bay 
Municipality 

 X  X  X 

Ekurhuleni 
Municipality 

 X  X   

Drakenstein 
Municipality 

X      

Ethekwini 
Municipality  

X  X X  X 

City of Tshwane      X 

 

 

      



Section 8 ASB ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 
 

 57 

 

Organisation Financial 
instruments 

Materiality Landfill  

Sites 

Adjustments 

to Revenue 

Application 
of Standards 
of GRAP by 

Public 
Entities that 
Apply IFRS® 
Standards 

Review of 
amendments 

to GRAP 16 
and GRAP 17 

PREPARERS       

TREASURIES       

Limpopo Provincial 
Treasury 

 X     

Gauteng Provincial 
Treasury 

 X     

National Treasury  X X X  X 

AUDITORS AND 
CONSULTANTS 

      

AGSA X X   X  

EY X X X  X  

KPMG X X  X X X 

Deloitte X X  X X  

Mazars    X   

SNG GT  X   X  

IDG Consulting     X  

Adapt IT  X     

Altimax X      

Environmental and 
Sustainability 
Solutions 

  X    

SoluGrowth X   X   

W.Consulting  X   X  

OTHER INTERESTED 
PARTIES  

      

SAIPA   X    

SAICA      X 

CIGFARO X X  X  X 

SALGA  X X    

COGTA    X  X 

 



 

 58 

 
   

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 
 

Ground Floor 
Building A 

Midridge Office Estate 
International Business Gateway 

Cnr New Road & 6th Road 
Midrand 

1682 
 

P O Box 7001 
Halfway House 

Midrand 
1685 

 

Tel:  011 697 0660 
Fax:  011 697 0666 

 

RP121/2019 
ISBN: 978-0-621-47297-4 

 
www.asb.co.za 

 
 




